Appendix Brickmaking in Bracknell – Extracts from: Bracknell and District Historical Society (1990) Brickmaking: A Local History

Front cover: Bracknell Pottery Brick and Tile Co. about 1886; view of the works on either side of Folders Lane, Priestwood, Bracknell. 
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Bracknell

There was a brick kiln opposite Martin’s Heron in 182210, In Warfield, Francis
Gardner was a farmer and brickmaker in 1854, and Robert West was at the Brick
Kilns, apparently a public house, in 1876.

Warfield Brick Works. The lane joining Gough’s Lane and Priory Lane was called
Brick-kiln Lane in 1817, and there were brick and tile works with kilns and
claymills on its south side in 1870"". Kiln Cottages, a terrace of four, were built by
Lawrence'’s in Gough's Lane in 1890. Ten million tiles per year are said to have
been produced here, the strong plastic blue clay required coming from a depth of
20 - 30 feet. Four scotch kilns were replaced by three circular tile kilns in the
1920’s when both open and heated drying sheds were built. In about 1950 the
circular tile kilns and two of the three heated sheds were demolished and the
automatically stoked rectangular down-draughtkiln was built. A beehive kiln was
converted to oil-firing in about 1970.

Folder’s Lane. There were large brick and tile works on either side of the
lane, 2, 13 opened and abandoned some time between 1870 and 1898. The
Bracknell Pottery Brick and Tile Co. was active in 1883 and 1895, and its works at
this site were auctioned atbankruptcy in 1886. It may have by been succeeded by
the Bracknell Brick and Tile Co. (1899, 1903).

Gough’s Lane Brick Works Ltd'4. This worked from about 1926'to 1939, and had a
Hoffmann kiln of about 16 chambers, three scotch kilns and two beehive kilns. The
site was acquired by Lawrence’s in about 1948.

Bullbrook'®. Asmall yard was established here by 1878 and disused by 1909, but
by 1932 there was a new kiln with chimney. Thomas Crocker, farmer, made bricks
here in 1895, followed by his son Charles to 1915. Charles R. Collins Ltd., tilers,
started here in the 1920’s and seem to have continued to as late as 1960.

Mount Pleasant'®. Alfred Fielder made bricks here in 1877 and Kiln Cottages
were built in 1880.

Easthampstead. In 1810 the Manorimposed a fine of 20s per load on bricks fired
on heather and sold out of the Parish. Loughlin Webb farmed and made bricks
here in 1861, and James Butler made bricks and sold beer in 1887. In 1870 there
were small brickyards south of Skimped Hill lane'?. The area north of the lane was
formerly Priestwood Common, and in 1827 was the site of Great and Little Brick
Field Ponds. The tenant, Oliver Goddard, took sand from the Parish pit for his
‘brick etc manufactury’ in 1824. William Miller paid 6d a load for the sand in 1839,
for his brick kiln, had a kiln and sheds here in 1841, and still manufactured in 1851.
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Thomas Lawrence’s Easthampstead Works'® was here by 1893, and by 1898 a
siding connected itto the railway. The works had gone by 1909, but Joseph Crisp
again made bricks here in 1928 and 1935.

Down Mill brickfield'®. By 1909 there were large buildings and a tramway to the
workings and connecting with the railway. The Down Mill (Bracknell) Brick Co.
Ltd., was here in 1903 and 1915. By 1920 the Maidenhead Brick and Tile Co. Ltd.,
had taken over, and was still active until about 1950. A flag was flown when a
production of 100,000 bricks was achieved in a week.
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THE DEVELOPMENT OF
THE LOCAL BRICK INDUSTRY

The Nineteenth Century

As in all localities where bricks are widely used for building, there were formerly many
small brickyards scattered around the area. If you wanted bricks for a house a local tailor
like Rowland Fielder of Binfield (1852), a farmer like James Lawrence of Binfield (1863) ora
baker and beer retailer like James Kennington of Wokingham (1863) might make them for
you. The bricks for larger buildings were often made on their estates. Wellington College,
opened in 1859, had its own brickyard, and John Walter IIl, chief Proprietor of The Times,
built his house Bear Wood (1865 - 1874) with 4,465,000 bricks from his kilns at California,
which also supplied bricks for the offices of The Times in London (1872 - 1883)

By the 1890's larger yards had appeared. Thomas Lawrence and Sons were supplying
bricks all over the country, producing 12 million per year. Their works at Swinley,
Easthampstead and Wokingham were connected to the railway and they had further works
at Warfield and at Pinewood, Crowthorne. The Binfield Brick and Tile Company (and later
Down Mill brickworks) were also connected to the railway, and there were two large but
short-lived yards in Folders Lane, Bracknell.

Apart from Swinley and small yards at Crowthorne, where the Bracklesham Beds were
used to produce rubber bricks, most yards mainly worked the London Clay.

The Twentieth Century

In the twentieth century the industry was dominated by Thomas Lawrence and Sons and
two smaller operators, the Binfield Brick and Tile Company, and the Down Mill brickfield
which was taken over by the Maidenhead Brick and Tile Company by 1920. However, in the
1920's and 1930's there was still a place for small yards drying their bricks in the open and
firing them in a single scotch kiln. Enterprising small brickmakers, like Mr. Sarney, Mr. Crisp
and Mr. Barker, built their own houses with their product.

During the Second World War, production of bricks ceased and the drying sheds were
used for stores such as food, timber, ammunition and spare parts for aircraft. After the war
the industry never fully recovered. Maidenhead Brick and Tile Company ceased operation
at Down Mill about 1950, Thomas Lawrence and Sons at Eastheath, Wokingham about
1960, and the Binfield Brick and Tile Company about 1964. Obsolescent machinery and
methods, and competition for labour by the expanding local industry of Bracknell New
Town, made it impossible to compete with the larger brickworks such as those on the
Oxford Clay, with more economical raw materials and modern machinery. Only Thomas
Lawrence and Sons continued to work into the 1980s, serving a specialist market.




image3.jpeg
8.6l jo dew
s,uoldquing r W wolj umeig

Offs | 0} Youy | sjesg

[ o

speg joysBeg

speg
weysepjorig

speg uoueg

SNOLLYWHO4 TVIID01039

o na A peoy

= uoneis
e Aemyey

O PIwA oug

v dVIN

joysBegq |

NI SNOLLYIWHOL TvII90T039D ANV SAHVA MOiHg





image4.jpeg
LOCAL BRICKYARDS AND BRICKMAKERS

Information on the yards (numbered 1 - 34 in text and maps) comes mainly from
old maps, back to 1870, and that on the brick makers from old directories. Often
only first and last dates are quoted.




